

June 1, 2015

#### VIA UPS OVERNIGHT

**Board of Public Utilities** 

44 South Clinton Ave., 9th Floor

Irene Kim Asbury

Secretary

PO Box 350





A Pennsylvania Professional Corporation

### Stacy A. Mitchell

Direct Phone 856-910-5006 Direct Fax 877-295-6880 smitchell@cozen.com

JUN 0 2 2015

BOARD OF PUBLIC UTILITIES MAIL ROOM



Re:

In the Matter of the Petition of The Atlantic City Sewerage Company for Authorization to Increase Tariff Rates and Charges for Sewerage Service BPU Docket No. WR14101263

OAL PUC Docket No. 14773-2014S

and

Trenton, NJ 08625

In the Matter of the Petition of The Atlantic City Sewerage Company to Change the Level of its Purchased Sewerage Treatment Adjustment Clause

BPU Docket No. WR15010118

Dear Secretary Asbury:

Pursuant to the Board Orders in the referenced matters, we hereby submit on behalf of The Atlantic City Sewerage Company an original and ten (10) copies of the Company's Compliance Filing.

Please stamp the extra copy of the Compliance Filing as "Received", and return it in the selfaddressed, stamped envelope provided for that purpose.

Respectfully.

COZEN O'CONNOR, PO

SAM:kn Enclosure

CC:

Attached Service List (via email)

Mitchell



JUN 0 2 2015

#### SERVICE LIST

BOARD OF PUBLIC UTILITIES

In the Matter of the Petition of The Atlantic City Sewerage Company for Authorization to Increase Tariff Rates and Charges for Sewerage Service
BPU Docket No. WR14101263
OAL Docket No. PUC14773-2014 S

Maria Moran Board of Public Utilities 44 South Clinton Ave., 9<sup>th</sup> Floor PO Box 350 Trenton, NJ 08625-0350 maria.moran@bpu.state.nj.us

Michael Kammer Board of Public Utilities 44 South Clinton Ave., 9<sup>th</sup> Floor PO Box 350 Trenton, NJ 08625-0350 mike.kammer@bpu.state.nj.us

Caroline Vachier, DAG
Division of Law
Dept. of Law and Public Safety
124 Halsey Street, 5<sup>th</sup> Floor
PO Box 45029
Newark, NJ 07101
caroline.vachier@dol.lps.state.nj.us

Christopher Psihoules, DAG
Division of Law
Dept. of Law and Public Safety
124 Halsey Street, 5<sup>th</sup> Floor
PO Box 45029
Newark, NJ 07101
Christopher.psihoules@dol.lps.state.nj.us

Debra F. Robinson, Esquire Water & Wastewater Division of Rate Counsel 140 East Front Street, 4<sup>th</sup> Floor PO Box 003 Trenton, NJ 08625 drobinson@rpa.state.nj.us Christine Juarez
Division of Rate Counsel
140 East Front Street, 4<sup>th</sup> Floor
PO Box 003
Trenton, NJ 08625
cjuarez@rpa.state.nj.us

Wendy Stewart
Atlantic City Sewerage Company
1200 Atlantic Avenue
Suite 300
Atlantic City, NJ 08401
wstewart@acsewerage.com

Louis M. Walters
President and General Manager
Atlantic City Sewerage Company
1200 Atlantic Avenue
Suite 300
Atlantic City, NJ 08401
lwalters@acsewerage.com

Stefanie A. Brand, Director Division of Rate Counsel 140 East Front Street, 4<sup>th</sup> Floor PO Box 003 Trenton, NJ 08625 sbrand@rpa.state.nj.us

Carl Cordek
Samson Asset Management
3350 Centre Square East
1500 Market Street
Philadelphia, PA 19102
cordekc@aol.com

Susan E. McClure, Esquire Division of Rate Counsel 140 East Front Street, 4<sup>th</sup> Floor PO Box 003 Trenton, NJ 08625 smcclure@rpa.state.nj.us

Edward Hiott
Board of Public Utilities
44 South Clinton Ave., 9<sup>th</sup> Floor
PO Box 350
Trenton, NJ 08625-0350
Edward.hiott@bpu.state.nj.us

Yanina Lepore
Board of Public Utilities
44 South Clinton Ave., 9<sup>th</sup> Floor
PO Box 350
Trenton, NJ 08625-0350
yanina.lepore@bpu.state.nj.us

Kofi Ocansey
Board of Public Utilities
44 South Clinton Ave., 9<sup>th</sup> Floor
PO Box 350
Trenton, NJ 08625-0350
kofi.ocansey@bpu.state.nj.us

Brian Kalcic
Excel Consulting
225 S. Meramee Avenue
Suite 720T
St. Louis, Missouri 63105
excel.consulting@sbcgobel.net

Stacy Mitchell, Esquire Cozen O'Connor 457 Haddonfield Road LibertyView Suite 300 Cherry Hill, NJ 08002 smitchell@cozen.com Darlene Nichols, Water Paralegal Division of Rate Counsel 140 East Front Streets, 4<sup>th</sup> Floor PO Box 003 Trenton, NJ 08625 dnichols@rpa.state.ni.us

David Peterson 10351 Southern Maryland Boulevard Suite 202 Dunkirk, Maryland 20754-95000 davep@chesapeake.net

Mona Mosser
Board of Public Utilities
44 South Clinton Ave., 9<sup>th</sup> Floor
PO Box 350
Trenton, NJ 08625-0350
mona.mosser@bpu.state.nj.us

Howard J. Woods Howard J. Woods, Jr. & Assoc., LLC 138 Liberty Drive Newtown, PA 18940-1111 howard@howardwoods.com

Matthew I. Kahal c/o Exeter Associates, Inc. 10480 Little Patuxent Parkway Suite 300 Columbia, Maryland 21044 mkahal@exeterassociates.com

Ira G. Megdal, Esquire Cozen O'Connor 457 Haddonfield Road LibertyView Suite 300 Cherry Hill, NJ 08002 imegdal@cozen.com



JUN 0 2 2015

BOARD OF PUBLIC UTILITIES MAIL ROOM

**TARIFF** 

**FOR** 

SEWERAGE SERVICE

Applicable In

THE CITY OF ATLANTIC CITY

**NEW JERSEY** 

Date of Issue:

October 31, 2014

Issued by:

LOUIS M. WALTERS, President & General Manager

1200 Atlantic Avenue

Atlantic City, New Jersey

Effective for Service rendered on and after

June 1, 2015.

### TABLE OF CONTENTS

	Sheet No.
Title Page	1
Table of Contents	
An Introduction to Customers	3
An Overview of Common Customer Complaints and Customer Rights	4
Deposits	4-5
Deferred Payment Arrangement	
Discontinuance of Service	
Meters	6-7
Form of Bill for Metered Service	7
Standard Terms and Conditions	
Territory to which Tariff Applies	8
General Rules	
General Provisions	
Definition of Terms	11
Nature and Extent of Services	11
Requirements as to Wastewater Discharged	11
Annual Charges for Sewerage Service	11
Water Used from Sources Other Than the Public Water System	12
Exemption for Water Not Entering the Sewerage System	12-13
Billing	13
Billing Year	13
Payment for Sewerage Service	14
Requests for Disconnection of Service	
Schedule of Rates	
Application	15
Annual Rates	16
Limitations on Wastewater Discharges	Exhibit A

Date of Issue:

October 31, 2014

Issued by:

LOUIS M. WALTERS, President & General Manager

1200 Atlantic Avenue Atlantic City, New Jersey Effective for Service rendered on and after

June 1, 2015.

### AN INTRODUCTION TO CUSTOMERS

The approved tariff located here in the Company's office is available for your review. The Company is responsible to maintain its tariff with any changes approved by the Board of Public Utilities and must, by State Law and regulations, maintain it in exactly the same format as the Company's tariff on file at the Board of Public Utilities, 44 South Clinton Avenue, Trenton, N.J. The Division of Water and Wastewater is on the 9<sup>th</sup> Floor.

If, after you review this tariff and discuss it with appropriate Company employees, you still have questions regarding clarification or interpretations, please contact the Board of Public Utilities, Division of Customer Relations at 1-800-624-0241, 609-341-9188 or <a href="https://www.ni.gov/bpu">www.ni.gov/bpu</a>.

You have the right to review this tariff at the Company's offices or at the Board's office in Trenton. Your inquiries will be handled by the Board's staff in an expeditious manner in order to protect your rights as well as those of the Company. Please feel free to exercise this right by telephoning or by visiting the Board's offices at any time between the hours of 9:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday, or by writing a letter. The letter should contain the writer's name, address and phone number including area code. If the writer is a customer of record, the account number should be included.

The Company has available in its office a leaflet entitled "An Overview of Common Customer Complaints and Customer Rights." This is a summary of the most frequent customer complaints and rights; it does not include all customer rights or utility obligations.

The Board of Public Utilities is responsible for the final interpretation and enforcement of a utility's Tariff provisions and rates. The utility is bound by New Jersey's statutes and the Board's regulations. If a conflict should exist in the Tariff that is detrimental to the Customer, the Board's regulations supersede the Tariff provision absent specific approval to the contrary by the New Jersey Board of Public Utilities. A utility company may provide for more liberal treatment than that provided for in the Board's Regulations.

Date of Issue:

October 31, 2014

Issued by:

LOUIS M. WALTERS, President & General Manager

1200 Atlantic Avenue Atlantic City, New Jersey Effective for Service rendered on and after June 1, 2015.

### AN OVERVIEW OF COMMON CUSTOMER COMPLAINTS AND CUSTOMER RIGHTS

- 1. No public utility shall refuse to furnish or supply service to a qualified applicant. (Board Order CX86602155)
- 2. The utility shall not place the name of a second individual on the account of a residential Customer unless specifically requested by said second individual. (N.J.A.C. 14:3-3.2)

#### **DEPOSITS**

- 3. If after notice of the methods of establishing credit and being afforded an opportunity, a customer has not established satisfactory credit, the utility may require a deposit. The deposit amount shall be determined by taking the cost of service for one year dividing by twelve and multiplying that figure by 2. EX. 12 months total bills = \$763.54 divided by 12 = \$63.63 multiplied by 2 = \$127.26 deposit, or \$127.
- 4. The utility shall furnish a receipt to each customer that makes a deposit. If the deposit is provided by mail, internet or telephone, the utility may comply with this requirement by displaying the amount of the deposit on the customer's next bill. (N.J.A.C. 14:3-3-4.(i)).
- 5. Each utility shall review a residential customer's account at least once every year and a nonresidential customer's account at least every two years. If this review indicates that the customer has met the utility's standard requirements for establishing credit, the utility shall refund the customer's deposit. (N.J.A.C. 14:3-3.5(a)).
- 6. Interest payments on the customer deposits held to secure residential accounts shall be made to the customer at least once during each 12-month period in which a deposit is held. (N.J.A.C. 14:3-3.5(g)).
- 7. When a utility refunds a deposit or pays a customer interest on a deposit, the utility shall offer the customer the option of a credit to the customer's account or a separate check. In either case, the utility shall provide the full refund or payment within one billing period after the review required under N.J.A.C. 14:3-3.5(a) is completed, or after the interest payment is due, as applicable, unless other reasonable arrangements are made between the customer and the utility. (N.J.A.C. 14:3-3.5(h)).

### (continued)

Date of Issue:

October 31, 2014

Issued by:

LOUIS M. WALTERS, President & General Manager

1200 Atlantic Avenue Atlantic City, New Jersey Effective for Service rendered on and after June 1, 2015.

8. Where a water or sewer utility furnishes unmetered service, for which payment is received in advance, it may not request a deposit, (N.J.A.C. 14:3-3.4(j)).

### DEFERRED PAYMENT ARRANGEMENT

9. A customer is entitled to at least one deferred payment plan in one year. N.J.A.C. 14:3-7.7(b)(2). In the case of a residential customer who received more than one utility service from the same utility (ex: Water and sewer; gas and electric) and the amount which is in arrears is a combination of those services, the utility shall offer a separate deferred payment agreement for each service based on the outstanding balance for that service. (N.J.A.C. 14:3-7.7(d)). The Company MUST renegotiate the deferred payment agreement should the customer's financial situation change significantly. The Company must also issue a new discontinuance notice each time it intends to shut off service, including for default on the terms of the agreement. In the case of a residential customer who receives more than one utility service from the same utility and has subsequently entered into an agreement for each separate service, default on one such agreement shall constitute grounds for discontinuance of only that service. (N.J.A.C. 14:3-7.7(f)).

### **DISCONTINUANCE OF SERVICE**

- 10. A utility shall not discontinue service because of nonpayment in cases where a charge is in dispute, provided the undisputed charges are paid and the customer has requested that the Board of Public Utilities investigate the disputed charge. (N.J.A.C. 14:3-3A.2(e)5). In accordance with N.J.A.C. 14:3-7.6(b), the utility shall notify the customer that they may make a request to the Board of Public Utilities for an investigation of the disputed charge.
- 11. A notice of discontinuance sent to the customer shall be postmarked no earlier than 15 days after the postmark date of the outstanding bill. The notice of discontinuance for nonpayment shall provide the customer with at least 10 days written notice of the utility's intention to discontinue service. (N.J.A.C. 14:3-3A.3).
- 12. The utility shall make good faith efforts to determine which of their residential customers are over 65 years of age, and shall make good faith efforts to notify such customers of discontinuance of service by telephone in addition to notice by regular mail. This effort may consist of an appropriate inquiry set forth on the notice informing customers that they may designate a third party to receive notice of discontinuance. (N.J.A.C. 14:3-3A.49(c)).

### (continued)

Date of Issue:

October 31, 2014

Issued by:

LOUIS M. WALTERS, President & General Manager

1200 Atlantic Avenue Atlantic City, New Jersey Effective for Service rendered on and after

June 1, 2015.

- A water utility shall not discontinue residential service involuntarily except between the 13. hours of 8:00 A.M. and 4:00 P.M., Monday through Thursday, unless there is a safety related emergency. There shall be no involuntary discontinuance of service on Fridays, Saturdays, and Sundays or on the day before a New Jersey State holiday or on a New Jersey State holiday absent such emergency. (N.J.A.C. 14:3-3A.1(c)).
- The occupant of a multiple family dwelling, has the right to be notified of pending service 14. discontinuance at least fifteen (15) days prior to the service being discontinued. (N.J.A.C. 14:3-3A.6).
- A customer has the right to have any complaint against the utility handled promptly by that 15. utility. (Board Order, Docket No, C08602155).
- Each utility shall, upon request, furnish its customers with such information as is reasonable 16. in order that the customers may obtain safe, adequate and proper service (N.J.A.C. 14:3-3(a)). Each utility shall inform its customers, where peculiar or unusual circumstances prevail, as to the conditions under which sufficient and satisfactory service may be secured from its system. (N.J.A.C. 14:3-3.3(c)). Each utility shall supply its customers with information on the furnishing and performance of service in a manner that tends to conserve energy resources and preserve the quality of the environment. (N.J.A.C. 14:3-3.3(d)),

### **METERS**

Each utility shall, without charge, make a test of the accuracy of a meter upon request of a 17. customer, provided such customer does not make a request for test more frequently than once in 12 months. (N.J.A.C. 14:3-4.5(a)). If a customer has a complaint filed with the Board reflecting on the accuracy or performance of the meter, the utility shall not remove the customer's meter from service during the pendency of said complaint, or during the 30 days following the Board's decision on the complaint, unless otherwise authorized by the Board's staff. (N.J.A.C. 14:3-4.8(c)). When a billing dispute is known to exist, the electric, gas or water utility shall, prior to removing the meter, advise the customer that the customer may have the meter tested by the utility, or may have the Board witness a testing of the meter by the utility, and that in any event the customer may have the test witnessed by a third party. (N.J.A.C. 14:3-4.5(c)).

(continued)

Date of Issue:

October 31, 2014

Issued by:

LOUIS M. WALTERS, President & General Manager

1200 Atlantic Avenue

Atlantic City, New Jersey

Effective for Service rendered on and after June 1, 2015.

18. Whenever a water meter is found to be registering fast by more than one and one-half percent, an adjustment of charges shall be made in accordance with the following: (1) if the date when the meter had first become inaccurate can be ascertained then the adjustment shall be such percentage as the meter is found to be in error at the time of test adjusted to 100 percent on the amount of the bills covering the entire period that the meter has registered inaccurately; (2) in all other cases the adjustment shall be such percentage as the meter is found to be in error at the time of the test on one-half of the total amount of the billing affected by the fast meter adjusted to 100 percent since the previous test. No adjustment shall be made for a period greater than the time during which the customer has received service through that meter. No adjustment shall be made for a meter that is found to be registering less than 100 percent except in the case of meter tampering, non-registering meters or in a circumstance in which the customer should reasonably have known that his bill did not reflect his usage. (N.J.A.C. 14:3-4.6).

### FORM OF BILL FOR METERED SERVICE

- 19. A utility must maintain records of customers' accounts for each billing period occurring within a six (6) year period. Such records shall contain all information necessary to permit computation of the bill. (N.J.A.C. 14:3-7.8).
- 20. Bills rendered must contain the following information: (a) For metered service, the meter readings at the beginning and end of the billing period; (b) For metered service, the dates on which the meter is read; (c) the number and kind of units measured; (d) identification of applicable rate schedule or a statement that the applicable rate schedule will be furnished on request; (e) the amount of the bill; (f) a distinctive marking to indicate an estimated, averaged or a remote meter index where applicable; (g) an explanation or statement of any conversion from meter reading to billing units or any other calculations or factors used in determining the bill; and (h) the gross receipts and franchise tax statement. (N.J.A.C. 14:3-7.2).

Date of Issue:

October 31, 2014

Issued by:

LOUIS M. WALTERS, President & General Manager

1200 Atlantic Avenue Atlantic City, New Jersey Effective for Service rendered on and after June 1, 2015.

### STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS

### Territory to Which Tariff Applies:

In the City of Atlantic City which is in the County of Atlantic.

### General Rules

The Atlantic City Sewerage Company hereby adopts Regulations for Sewer utility promulgated by the Board of Public Utilities of the State of New Jersey, which Regulations are incorporated herein by reference thereto.

The Company shall own and maintain all house lateral connections from its mains to the curb line of the property. A curb box enclosing a "cleanout tee" shall be installed by the Company on the sidewalk near the curb for each house lateral connection. The customer shall maintain the house lateral connection from the curb box into and on the premises of the customer.

Property owners wishing to connect their premises with the sewer line of the Company shall make application at the office of the Company and must agree to the terms, conditions and rates as set forth in this and subsequent tariffs of the Company.

Grease interceptors shall be provided by the customer, at customer's expense when, in the opinion of the Company, they are necessary for the proper handling of liquid wastes containing grease or other ingredients harmful to the sewer system or sewage treatment plant or processes.

The size and type of each interceptor shall be determined according to maximum volume and rate of discharge, and each interceptor shall be approved by the Company. No wastes other than those requiring separation shall be discharged into any interceptor.

A grease interceptor or interceptors for major installations shall be mechanical devices which are not solely dependent upon employees, for maintenance and operation.

All interceptors shall be installed upon the lines of the customers in such a manner and location that they are accessible for inspection by the employees of the Company.

No fixture or fixtures shall be installed in the premises of a customer in a basement or at any other point, unless the trap of the fixture is at least 6 inches above the level of the manhole cover of the Company's main which is nearest to the connection to said customer's premises. This provision

Date of Issue:

October 31, 2014

Issued by:

LOUIS M. WALTERS, President & General Manager

1200 Atlantic Avenue Atlantic City, New Jersey

Effective for Service rendered on and after June 1, 2015.

### Standard Terms and Conditions (Continued)

does not apply where adequate Pumping facilities are installed on premises. The Company may require the removal of any fixture which violates this provision and failure to remove such fixture within the time specified shall be cause for the Company to discontinue service and refuse further services until the offending fixture or fixtures are removed.

The Company shall not be liable, whatever the cause, for any damages, resulting from a backing up of sewerage through open traps in fixtures located in basements or otherwise or from open joints in sewer lines located in basements or elsewhere, where such traps or lines are less than 6 inches above the level of the manhole cover of the Company's main which is nearest to the connection to the premises of the customer.

In accordance with the National Standard Plumbing Code adopted by the Uniform Construction Code of the State of New Jersey, no storm drainage system of a building shall be connected directly or indirectly to the sanitary drainage system. The Company adopts the above provision and prohibits the drainage of storm water into its collecting system.

All persons, whose premises are connected with the Company's sewerage system or otherwise discharging sewage, wastes, water or other liquids either directly or indirectly into the sewerage system, shall be charged for such service according to the approved rates filed with the Board of Public Utilities of the State of New Jersey.

Sewerage service may be discontinued by the Company for any of the following reasons:

- 1. For non-payment of a valid bill due for service based on the rates approved by the Board and contained in the utility's tariff. Customers unable to pay the full annual bill shall be afforded the opportunity to enter into a reasonable deferred payment agreement. If service is discontinued, a reconnection fee of \$25.00 shall apply.
- 2. For the refusal to admit the proper representative of the Company who requires admission to the premises for the purpose set forth in the General Provisions, Original Sheet No. 12.
- For the violation of one or more of the standard terms and conditions of service contained in this or subsequent tariffs of the Company. Service may be discontinued by the Company for violation of standard terms and conditions upon 30 days notice of the existence of such violation.

Date of Issue;

October 31, 2014

Issued by:

LOUIS M. WALTERS, President & General Manager

1200 Atlantic Avenue Atlantic City, New Jersey Effective for Service rendered on and after June 1, 2015.

### Standard Terms and Conditions (Continued)

All notices herein of discontinuance shall be delivered to the owner personally or by registered mail, addressed to the last address of the owner listed in the records of the Company. On all notices of discontinuance to residential customers, there shall be included:

- 1. A statement that the utility is subject to the jurisdiction of the New Jersey Board of Public utilities and the address and phone number of the Board. The telephone numbers of the Board to be indicated on such statement are (609) 341-9188 and (800) 624-0241 (toll free).
- 2. A statement that in the event the customer is either unable to make payment of a bill or wishes to contest a bill the customer should contact the utility. The notice shell contain information sufficient for the customer to make appropriate inquiry.
- 3. A statement that if the customer is presently unable to pay an outstanding bill, the customer may contact the utility to discuss the possibility of entering into a reasonable deferred payment agreement. In the case of a residential customer receiving more than one different service from the same utility, the statement shall state that deferred payment agreements are available separately for each utility service.

The utility shall make every reasonable attempt to determine when a landlord-tenant relationship exists at residential premises being serviced. If such a relationship is known to exist, discontinuance of residential service is prohibited unless the utility has posted notice of discontinuance in the common areas of multiple family premises and has given individual notice to occupants of single and two family dwellings and has offered the tenants continued service to be billed to the tenants, unless the utility demonstrates that such billing is not feasible. The continuation of service to a tenant shall not be conditioned upon payment by the tenant of any outstanding bills due upon the account of any other person. The utility shall not be held to the requirements of this provision if the existence of a landlord-tenant relationship could not be reasonably ascertained.

The Company reserves the right subject to approval of the Board of Public Utilities of the State of New Jersey, to change, take from, or add to the foregoing rules, regulations, terms and conditions.

Date of Issue:

October 31, 2014

Issued by:

LOUIS M. WALTERS, President & General Manager

1200 Atlantic Avenue Atlantic City, New Jersey Effective for Service rendered on and after June 1, 2015.

### **GENERAL PROVISIONS**

### **Definition of Terms**

The Company shall mean The Atlantic City Sewerage Company.

The Company's lines shall mean its laterals, mains, manholes, and appurtenances.

<u>Buildings</u> shall include structures of all types which are directly or indirectly connected to the Company's lines.

### Nature and Extent of Service

Sanitary sewerage service for all dwellings will be furnished to all customers at rates set forth in this schedule.

Sanitary sewerage service for business, commercial and industrial buildings will be furnished at rates set forth in this schedule, but only to the extent that the demand therefore will not interfere with the maintenance of adequate sanitary sewerage service to other customers of the Company.

<u>Requirements as to Wastewater Discharged</u> - Since the Company is a participant in the Atlantic County Utilities Authority and must comply with the Rules and Regulations of said Authority, the Company has adopted the Authority's Requirements as to <u>Wastewater Discharged</u>: copies, of which, are available in the Office of the Company, and attached to this tariff as Exhibit A.

### Annual Charges for Sewerage Service

The annual charge for any residence, firm, or corporation situated within the service territory of the Company, having any connection with the Company's sewerage system, shall be the sum of:

- (a) a fixed charge for each size water meter; and
- (b) volumetric collection and treatment charges based on the quantity of water used as measured by the water meter or meters then in use, owned by the customer or the entity rendering water service to the customer. For customers without water meters, the fixed and volumetric charges shall be based upon Company's estimate of annual water consumption until such time as a water meter is installed.

Date of Issue:

October 31, 2014

Issued by:

LOUIS M. WALTERS, President & General Manager

1200 Atlantic Avenue Atlantic City, New Jersey Effective for Service rendered on and after June 1, 2015.

### General Provisions (Continued)

### Water Used from Sources Other Than the Public Water System

The Company bills for sewerage service based upon metered water flow, registered upon meters of the Atlantic City Municipal Utilities Authority.

In the event any person or entity discharging sanitary sewage, industrial waste, water or other liquids into the Company's sewerage system, either directly or indirectly, obtains part or all of the water used by him from sources other than a metered public water system, such user of other water shall, at his own expense, install and maintain water meters satisfactory to the Company for measuring all water usage other than that obtained from the public water system, and the quantity of water used to determine the volumetric collection and treatment charges as set forth in this tariff shall be the sum of the quantity measured by all such meters plus the quantity of water obtained from the public water system. The Company may estimate appropriate fixed charges.

Company personnel shall at all reasonable times have authority to enter the customer's premises and have access to water meters owned by the customers for the purpose of recording the reading of those meters.

Each water meter, whenever installed by the customer, shall have been tested for accuracy at the customer's expense, and thereafter, shall be tested, and recalibrated, periodically as deemed necessary by the Company, also, at the customer's expense. Testing and recalibration shall be performed and certified to by qualified independent contractors with copies of the certifications delivered to the Company.

### Exemption for Water Not Entering the Sewerage System

In the event it is established to the satisfaction of the Company that a portion of the water measured by the water meters, does not and cannot enter the sanitary sewerage system, then the Company may determine, in such a manner and by such method as it may deem practical, the portion of the metered water entering the sanitary sewerage system, or the Company may require or permit the installation of additional meters in such a manner as to determine either the quantity of water excluded from the sewerage system, or the quantity of water actually entering the sanitary sewerage system. The sewerage volumetric charges shall be based upon the quantity of water estimated, measured or computed by the Company to be actually entering the sanitary sewerage system.

Date of Issue:

October 31, 2014

Issued by:

LOUIS M. WALTERS, President & General Manager

1200 Atlantic Avenue Atlantic City, New Jersey Effective for Service rendered on and after

June 1, 2015.

### General Provisions (Continued)

Persons requesting consideration for a reduction in the sewerage volumetric charges because of water not entering the sanitary sewerage system shall make written application to the Company for such consideration, giving the name of the individual, firm, industry or business, address, account number, and supporting data fully describing sources of water, as well as disposition of water alleged not to be entering the sewerage system. The application shall be accompanied by a drawing to approximate scale showing the plan of the property, water source, sewer layout, existing meters and proposed meters to determine the quantity of flow entering or not entering the sewerage system. The cost of furnishing, installing and maintaining any meters other than those utilized to measure water purchased from the water utility shall be borne by the customer. The type, size, location, arrangement and maintenance of such meters shall be subject to the approval of the Company.

### **Billing**

All customers connected with the Company's sewerage system shall be billed in accordance with the Schedule of Sewer Rates contained in this tariff and approved by the Board of Public Utilities.

Annual bills for sewerage service shall be rendered on a cycle billing basis (identified as the billing year) for all customers beginning in January and each month thereafter through August of each year based on the quantity of water estimated to be used during the year. A billing adjustment for any difference between actual and estimated usage will be made the following year in the corresponding billing cycle.

### Billing Year

The billing year shall be that twelve-month period which the Company designates for the purpose of billing, the beginning date of which shall be the first day of the month between the months of January and August, inclusive, nearest to but after the date of commencement of service to the property. Customers initiating service from September through December will be placed into the January billing cycle and a prorated bill will be rendered for the period from the date of the establishment of service through December 31.

Date of Issue:

October 31, 2014

Issued by:

LOUIS M. WALTERS, President & General Manager

1200 Atlantic Avenue Atlantic City, New Jersey Effective for Service rendered on and after

June 1, 2015.

### General Provisions (Continued)

### Payment for Sewerage Service

All charges for sewerage service shown in the billing are payable in advance for the twelve (12) month period commencing on the first day of the appropriate billing year. The customer may pay one-half (1/2) of the total charges within 30 days of the day the bill is sent and the remaining one-half (1/2) within six months of the date the bill is sent. Accounts will be considered delinquent when payment of at least one-half (1/2) of the total charges is not received within thirty (30) days of the date the bill is sent. The second, payment is considered delinquent if not received six months after the bill is sent.

### Requests for Discontinuance of Service

Customers wishing to discontinue service must give notice to that effect. Where such notice is not received by the utility, the customer shall remain liable for service until the final reading of the water meter. Customers wishing to discontinue service and contact the Company shall be advised by the Company that they must obtain a final meter reading from the Atlantic City Municipal Utilities Authority and submit same to the Company. All charges shall be prorated upon establishment and termination of service.

Customers who properly notify the Company during the billing year, in accordance with the above requirements, will be given a prorated credit or rebate. With respect to the Volumetric Collection and Treatment charges the credit or rebate will be calculated on the basis of the actual water used according to the water meter reading on the day service is discontinued.

Date of Issue:

October 31, 2014

Issued by:

LOUIS M. WALTERS, President & General Manager

1200 Atlantic Avenue Atlantic City, New Jersey Effective for Service rendered on and after June 1, 2015.

### **SCHEDULE OF RATES**

### <u>APPLICATION</u>

### General

This schedule is applicable to all sewer customers located within the service territory of the Company.

All annual sewer bills shall be calculated according to the method set forth on Original Sheet Nos. 11, 12 and 13.

The volumetric collection and treatment charges shall be applied to the nearest one-tenth of a thousand cubic feet of water measured by a water meter.

Each water meter shall be considered a separate billing unit in applying the rates set forth in this Schedule.

### Multiple Customers Served By a Single Water Meter

Except for buildings consisting of three or more dwelling units (e.g. apartment complexes and condominiums), when a single water meter serves more than one customer, (1) the volumetric collection and treatment charges shall be divided and billed equally among the customers served by the same water meter; and (2) the annual fixed charge shall be divided and billed equally among the customers of record served by the same water meter; however, in no such case shall multiple customers, served by a single water meter, be billed less than the annual fixed charge for a 5/8-inch water meter.

Date of Issue:

October 31, 2014

Issued by:

LOUIS M. WALTERS, President & General Manager

1200 Atlantic Avenue Atlantic City, New Jersey Effective for Service rendered on and after June 1, 2015,

### SCHEDULE OF RATES

### Annual Rates

### Fixed Charge

All customers shall pay the following annual fixed charge, based on the size of the water meter used in the rendering of water service:

	Total Annual
Size of Meter	Fixed Charge
5/8"	\$230
3/4	400
1	1,175
1-1/2	2,900
2	5,750
3	14,000
4	29,450
6	95,205
8	140,000
10 or larger	225,000

### Volumetric Collection Charge

In addition to the annual fixed charge, all customers shall pay \$7.243 for each 1,000 cubic feet of metered water, measured to the nearest one-tenth.

### Volumetric Treatment Charge

In addition to the annual fixed charge and the volumetric collection charge, all customers shall pay \$26.594 for each 1,000 cubic feet of metered water, measured to the nearest one-tenth, for sewerage treatment costs assessed the Company by the relevant treating wastewater facility.

Date of Issue:

October 31, 2014

Issued by:

LOUIS M. WALTERS, President & General Manager

1200 Atlantic Avenue Atlantic City, New Jersey Effective for Service rendered on and after June 1, 2015.

#### **EXHIBIT A**

### LIMITATIONS ON WASTEWATER DISCHARGES

Effective January 1990 A.C.U.A. Resolution 90-1

No person shall discharge directly or indirectly into the regional system, any wastewater the characteristics of which do not conform to the concentration limits prescribed herein, or to discharge into the regional system any toxic substances or any other objectionable material or substances as specified in this schedule, except upon written approval by the A.C.U.A. and upon such terms and conditions as may be established by the Authority in the acceptance of the wastewater.

### SECTION 1.0

No person shall discharge or permit the discharge or infiltration into the regional system any of the following:

Any liquid having a temperature higher than 150 degrees (65 degrees C) or heat in such amounts which will inhibit biological activity in the POTW resulting in Interference, but in no case heat in such quantities that the temperature at the POTW Treatment Plant exceeds 40 degrees C. (104 degrees F.) unless the State, upon request of the ACUA, approves an alternate limit.

Any liquid containing fats, wax, grease, or oils, whether emulsified or not, in excess of 100 mg/1 or containing substances which may solidify or become viscous at temperatures between .32 degrees E and 150 degrees F (0 degrees C and 65 degrees C).

Any water or wastes that contain hydrogen sulfide in sufficient quantity to cause damage or excessive odor within the wastewater treatment system.

Any residue from petroleum storage, refining or processing fuel or lubrication oil, gasoline, naptha, benzene, or other explosive or inflammable liquids, solids, or gases in such concentrations which would cause or potentially cause an explosive, flammable, or other hazardous condition.

### Any substances that may:

- A. Cause interference with the metering of wastewater;
- B. Pass through to the receiving waters without being effectively treated at the wastewater treatment processes,

Any solid or viscous substance in quantities or of such size capable of causing obstruction to the flow in sewers such as, but not limited to, mud, straw, metal, rags, glass tar, plastics, wood and shavings.

Any solid or viscous substances in quantities or of such size capable of causing an interference with the proper operation of the regional system such as, but not limited to ashes, cinders, sand, feathers,

unground garbage, whole blood, paunch manure, hair and fleshings, entrails, paper or plastic containers, etc., either whole or ground by garbage grinders.

Any garbage that has not been properly shredded to a degree that all particles can be carried freely under the flow conditions normally prevailing in public sewers. Particles greater than one-half (1/2) inch in any dimension are prohibited.

Any pollutant that will cause corrosive damage or hazard to structures, equipment, or personnel of the wastewater facilities, but in no case discharges having a pH lower than 5.0 Standard Units or greater than 9.0 Standard Units.

Any radioactive waste or isotope of such half-life or concentration as to be in excess of that permitted by appropriate regulatory agencies having control over their use or in such quantity as to cause damage or hazard to structures, equipment, and personnel of the Authority.

Any waste containing noxious or malodorous solids, liquids or gases, which, either single or by interaction with other wastes, are capable of creating a public nuisance or hazard to life, or are or may be sufficient to prevent entry into a sewer for its maintenance and repair.

Any unpolluted waters e.g. (stormwater, surface water, groundwater, roof runoff, cooling drainage) to the wastewater treatment system.

Any non-contact cooling water or unpolluted industrial process waters to the wastewater treatment system unless specifically allowed by A.C.U.A.

Constitute a rate of discharge sufficient to be classified as a "slug discharge", or containing such concentrations or quantities of pollutants that would cause an interference to the wastewater treatment system.

Any water or wastes containing toxins or pollutants in sufficient quantity and/or concentration to cause injury, damage or hazard to personnel, structures or equipment, or interfere with the Wastewater Treatment System or any portion of the liquid or solids treatment or handling processes, or that will pass through the wastewater treatment system in such condition that it will not achieve state, federal or other existing requirements for the effluent or for the receiving waters.

Any material which exerts or causes:

- A. Unusual concentrations of inert suspended solids (such as, but not limited to, Fuller's earth, lime slurries and lime residues) or of dissolved solids (such as, but not limited to, sodium chloride and sodium sulfate).
- B. Any water or wastes containing dyes, pigments or other colored substances that will not be removed in the wastewater treatment system and will interfere with effluent color or turbidity measurements.
- C. Unusual POD, COD, or chlorine 'requirements in such quantities as to constitute an unacceptable load on the wastewater treatment works.
- SECTION 1.1 No person shall dispose of wastes from septic tanks, cesspools, or other such sources of sanitary waste to the regional system without the prior written

approval of A.C.U.A. and in accordance with all conditions imposed by A.C.U.A. on such disposal.

### SECTION 1.2 No person shall uncover or make any unauthorized connection or alteration or otherwise disturb any element of the regional system without the prior written approval of A.C.U.A.

## SECTION 1.3 Connections to the regional system shall be designed and constructed to. conform to the requirement of all applicable state and local building and plumbing codes. All such connections shall be made gastight and watertight and shall be subject to the inspection and approval of A.C.U.A.

# SECTION 1.4 No person shall discharge to the regional system any liquids containing toxic solids, liquids or gases in sufficient quantity, either single or by interaction with other wastes, to injure or interfere with any wastewater treatment process, constitute a hazard to humans or animals, create a public nuisance, prevent the attainment of effluent limitations as imposed by any state or federal regulatory agency, or create any hazard in the effluent of the wastewater treatment plant or the receiving waters.

SECTION 1.5 The concentration in wastewater of any of the following substances shall be limited to the stated maximum concentrations in order to be acceptable for discharge to the regional system:

PARAMETERS	DISCHARGE Monthly* Average (MG/L)	LIMITATIONS Daily Maximum (MG/L)
Arsenic (as AS)	2.0	2.0
Boron (as BO)	1.0	1.0
Cadmium (as Cd)	0.26	0.69
Chromium (Total)	0.23	0.23
Copper (as Cu)	0.36	1.0
Cyanide (Total)	1.0	1.0
Iron (as Fe)	5.0	5.0
Lead (as Pb)	0.4	0.6*
Mercury (as Hg)	0.01	0.04*
Nickel (as Ni)	0.36	0.36
Silver (as Ag)	0.24	0.43*
Zinc	2.2	2.2
MBAS	10	10
Phenol	0.04	0.04
Total Solids	1,300	1,300

<sup>\*</sup>New (91) addition

### SECTION 1.6

No person shall discharge into the regional system any waters or wastes having the following characteristics without the prior review and approval of A.C.U.A.

- a) A five-day BOD concentration greater than three-hundred (300) parts per million, or
- b) A suspended solids concentration in excess of three-hundred (300)parts per million, by weight, or
- c) Incompatible pollutants, as defined in these Rules and Regulations, or
- d} Pollutants subject to the federal categorical pretreatment standards, as defined by 40 CFR 403, or
- e) Any new source significant indirect user (SIU) as. defined by N.J.S.A. 56:10A-6 and N.J.A.C. 7:14A-12.1.

LEGAL\21221187\2 00650.3408.000/353852.000